






MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 1 

CITY OF ST. MARYS, GEORGIA 
 

FY 2016 BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING  

“PROPOSED FY2016 BUDGET”  

June 1, 2015 

5:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
 

Mayor John F. Morrissey and City Council of the City of St. Marys conducted a Budget Public 

Hearing for the proposed FY 2016 Budget in Council Chambers at City Hall on June 1, 2015 at 

5:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT WERE:  Mayor John F. Morrissey 

  Councilmember Sam L. Colville 

  Councilmember Jim Gant 

  Councilmember Robert L. Nutter 

  Councilmember Elaine Powierski 

  Councilmember David Reilly 

  Councilmember Linda P. Williams 
 

CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT:       John J. Holman, City Manager  

  Donna Folsom, Human Resources Director 

  Jennifer Brown, Finance Director                                     

                                                           Michele Wood, Assistant Planner 

  Angela Wigger, Tourism Director 

                                                            Bobby Marr, Public Works Director 

  Robert Horton, Fire Chief 

     Timothy Hatch, Police Chief 
 

Mayor Morrissey called the hearing to order at 5:02 p.m., and opened the floor to the Public for 

questions and/or comments. 
 

GRANTING AUDIENCE TO THE PUBLIC 

Tom Canning, 410 Point Peter Place:  Mr. Canning thanked Council for ensuring large 

expense items will be budgeted ahead of time.    
    

Mayor Morrissey stated the City Manager was drafting three and five year budgets.  The City 

Manager stated a retreat pertaining to three and five year budgets and Master Plan/Visioning was 

being planned with a tentative date in September or October.  Councilmember Nutter thanked 

Tanya Glazebrook and Tom Canning for attending each FY 2016 Budget Work Session.  Mr. 

Holman announced the second FY 2016 Budget Public Hearing is scheduled for Monday, June 

15, 2015 (5:30 p.m.) in Council Chambers but stated funding for the FY 2016 Budget would take 

place in August.       
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor John F. Morrissey declared the FY 2016 Budget Public Hearing closed at 5:10 p.m. 
 

  Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

                                                  _____________________________ 

                                           Deborah Walker-Reed, City Clerk 

 



MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 2 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

June 1, 2015 

6:00 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

The Mayor and City Council for the City of St. Marys, Georgia met for its regular City Council 

session on Monday, June 1, 2015 in the Council Chamber at City Hall. 

 

PRESENT WERE:                                                   Mayor John F. Morrissey 

  Councilmember Sam L. Colville 

  Councilmember Jim Gant 

  Councilmember Robert L. Nutter 

  Councilmember Elaine Powierski 

  Councilmember David Reilly 

  Councilmember Linda P. Williams 

 

CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT:                              John J. Holman, City Manager  

  Donna Folsom, Human Resources Director 

  Jennifer Brown, Finance Director                                     

                                                           Michele Wood, Assistant Planner 

  Angela Wigger, Tourism Director 

                                                            Bobby Marr, Public Works Director 

  Robert Horton, Fire Chief 

     Timothy Hatch, Police Chief 
                                         
CALL TO ORDER:  

Mayor Morrissey called the City Council Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Councilmember Jim 

Gant gave the invocation.  Mayor Morrissey led the audience in the pledge of allegiance.  

Council roll call indicated a quorum of Council members present for the meeting. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  May 18, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Councilmember Nutter moved to approve the May 18, 2015 regular City Council Meeting 

Minutes.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the 

motion.  
   

PRESENTATIONS: 
 

RECOGNITION OF HELLO SUMMER & ST. MARYS FISHING CLASSIC:  Added  

Angela Wigger (Tourism Director)  

The Tourism Director thanked Lt. Brock (St. Marys Police Department) for the Cops and Robber 

5k, John Long (Hello Summer Festival) and Jerre Brumbelow (St. Marys Fishing Classic) for 

coordinating well attended events.  Mrs. Wigger stated over 2500 people attended the Hello 

Summer Festival and the Fishing Classic had over 80 entries.  Mrs. Wigger also announced the 

2016 Hello Summer Festival date as May 28, 2016.  Mr. Long thanked City personnel for their 

assistance and mentioned the various vendors, bands, and kid activities available at the Hello 

Summer Festival.  Mr. Brumbelow thanked City personnel and Council for their support and 

stated he had over 100 participants for the Fishing Classic.  The Mayor and Council thanked both 

gentlemen for organizing the successful events.       
 

 

ST. MARYS AIRPORT AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT:  Jay Stanford, Chairman 



MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 3 

Mr. Stanford thanked the City and Camden County Public Service Authority (PSA) for 

partnering with the Airport Authority to reduce operating cost for lawn maintenance. Mr. 

Stanford stated they were able to reduce expenses approximately 50% by collaborating with the 

PSA for lawn maintenance.  Mr. Stanford mentioned the daily patrols from the St. Marys Police 

Department which was greatly appreciated.  Councilmember Nutter asked Mr. Stanford to 

provide financials to City Council.  Mr. Stanford stated he would provide a copy to Council but 

mentioned financials were handed by the Finance Department.  The Mayor and Council thanked 

the Airport Authority and Camden County PSA for working together.    
 

ST. MARYS POLICE OFFICERS / POLICE OFFICER OATH OF OFFICE:  Police Chief  

(Timothy Hatch)  Chief Hatch introduced Cambreia Davis and Lance J. Olson as two new Police 

Officers in St. Marys.  The City Clerk administered the Oath of Office to Mr. Lance J. Olson.  

Mayor Morrissey, City Council, residents and City personnel welcomed both officers.      
 

MAIN STREET DOWNTOWN VISIONING BRIEFING:  Daniel Bivins, Carl Vinson Institute (Added)  

Mr. Bivins mentioned several cities that completed the program.  Mr. Bivins gave a brief 

overview of the streamlined process that will be followed during the six month process for the 

Main Street/Downtown Visioning Master Plan.  Mr. Bivins spoke about short term/long term 

goals, timelines/outlines, conceptual design process, planning estimates, funding, developing 

work programs that can be completed, and implemented.  Mr. Bivins mentioned the need for 

Council to reach out to the community, select various volunteers that had energy, were engaged, 

willing to participate and complete goals.  City Council requested Mr. Bivins provide data that 

could be placed online and an actionable item checklist.   
 

Tom Canning, 410 Point Peter Place:  Mr. Canning asked Mr. Bivins for clarification on 

the “usual suspects” comment and his recommendations for Steering Committee 

members.  Mr. Bivins stated every community’s approach is different and trust is 

required in order to implement any program.  Mr. Bivins stated he believes the City will 

select the correct people for their community.   
 

BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS (NEWLY FORMED & TERM EXPIRATION):   
1. Hospital Authority D/B/A St. Marys Senior Authority (Chuck Landham) 

2. Main Street Downtown Visioning & Planning Committee (4 positions)  
 

Mayor Morrissey announced upcoming vacancies on St. Marys Senior Authority and newly 

formed Main Street/Downtown Visioning Steering Committee.  
 

BOARD APPOINTMENT (TERM EXPIRATION):  Orange Hall Foundation 

(Cory Sant, Royal Weaver & Bridget Wenum)   

Councilmember Powierski made a motion to delay the vote to the June 15, 2015 City Council 

meeting regarding the Orange Hall Foundation board nominees or until issues are resolved to get 

clarification on issues that could be a conflict of interest.  Councilmember Powierski moved for 

discussion and stated two of the applicants have the same last name and one applicant is a part-

time employee of Orange Hall.  Councilmember Powierski asked Mr. Holman to review if a 

conflict of interest exists as the Orange Hall By-Laws prohibits board members from having 

financial gain.  Councilmember Williams seconded the vote.  Voting was unanimous in favor of 

the motion.    
 

SET CONSENT AGENDA (*): 

Councilmember Reilly moved to approve the consent agenda as New Business C and D.  

Councilmember Colville seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 



MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 4 

Councilmember Colville made a motion to approve the agenda with the additions.  

Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  The City Manager requested an addition to the 

agenda for an Appeal Hearing Date Request.  Councilmember Colville amended his motion to 

include the addition of item G “Appeal Hearing Date Request” and previous additions.  

Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion.   
 

GRANTING AUDIENCE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

Cathy Kloess, 127 Airport Road, Statesboro, GA:  Ms. Kloess spoke about open records 

request with the Airport Authority, sky divers landing on Kings Bay Naval Base, sky 

diving being allowed at the St. Marys Airport and criminal trespass questions to Police 

Chief (Timothy Hatch). 
 

Cheri Richter, 800 Seminole Avenue:  Mrs. Richter mentioned the well-attended Fishing 

Classic, selling alcohol wristbands and alcohol wrist band monetary funds required to be 

submitted to the City instead of the charity.  Mrs. Richter requested Council revise the 

policy on alcohol wrist band sales.         
 

Tom Canning, 410 Pointe Peter Place:  Mr. Canning mentioned the Get Out The Vote 

table at the Hello Summer Festival, assisting people with registering to vote and 

Kingsland City candidate forum on Tuesday, June 2, 2015 (6:30 p.m.) at Kingsland City 

Hall.      
 

Councilmember Nutter asked for clarification on Mrs. Richter comments regarding monetary 

funds submitted to the City for alcohol wristbands sales.  Mrs. Richter stated monetary funds 

from the sale of alcohol wristbands must be submitted to the City instead of the charity.  Angela 

Wigger (Tourism Director) stated wristband sales are intended to be utilized to reimburse the 

City for City personnel (Police, Fire and Public Works) staffing events.  Any monetary funds 

available after reimburse to the City is given back to the event organizer.  
 

Jim Goodman, 309 Borrell Blvd:  Mr. Goodman requested that Council reconsider the 

location of the selected Trolley Building at the waterfront park.  Mr. Goodman also 

suggested City Council wait for the Main Street/Downtown Master Plan for a best use of 

space for the Trolley Building and impact (erosion) to the Trolley/Trolley Building.      
     

OLD BUSINESS:   
 

A. AUTHORITIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS FORMAT UPDATE:   

Councilmember Elaine Powierski 

Councilmember Powierski gave a brief update on the 22 feedback response forms received 

and mentioned several comments and ratings submitted.  Councilmember Powierski stated 

she will analyze the narratives, create a document in the next few weeks and possibly set a 

work session.  Councilmember Powierski thanked everyone for submitting the feedback 

forms and stated it was greatly appreciated.  
 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. PEACEMAKER TALL SHIP (BERTHING AGREEMENT & LETTER OF SUPPORT):   

Becky Meyers (Main Street Coordinator)  

Request authorization for a Berthing Agreement with the Tall Ship and a Letter of Support 

for extension of stay beyond the Department of Natural Resources 90 day limit. 

Councilmember Reilly made a motion to approve the Letter of Support and Berthing 

Agreement with the Tall Ship.  Councilmember Williams seconded the motion.  

Councilmember Nutter moved for discussion and asked the City Manager for clarification on 



MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 5 

what would happen after 90 days and the ship did not sale, utility reimbursement, and sewer 

pump out.  Mr. Holman stated they would need to reapply with Department of Natural 

Resources (DNR) for additional time after the 90 days, reimburse conditions were stated in 

the agreement, and they will pay for and handle their own sewage issues.  Mr. Nutter stated 

the docking of the Tall Ship has a very positive economic impact on the City but he wanted 

to ensure reimburse procedures were in place and they operate in an environmentally safe 

manner.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

B. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT-SECTION 110-08: Michele Wood (Assistant Planner)  

Request amendment to Zoning Ordinance, Section 110-08 to include the permitted use for 

shipping containers within Commercial and Industrial Zones    

Councilmember Williams made a motion to approve amending the Zoning Ordinance, 

Section 110-08 to include permitted use of shipping containers within Commercial/Industrial 

Zones.  Councilmember Colville seconded the motion.  Councilmember Powierski moved for 

discussion and stated the City should not exclude building suppliers like Choo Choo from 

delivering building supplies to home sites.  Councilmember Powierski stated as worded it 

would not be allowed even on a short term basis.  Councilmember Colville stated the 

ordinance passed previously is not consistent and should be revised.   
 

The City Manager stated another section in the City ordinances covered temporary 

containers.  Councilmember Nutter stated various areas in the City have shipping/storage 

containers on their property for extended periods of time.  Councilmember Williams 

rescinded her motion.  The Mayor and Council tasked Mr. Holman with revising the 

ordinance.  Mr. Holman stated he would review with City Attorney and return at the next 

City Council meeting. 
 

C. ORDINANCE AMENDMENT-PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE (SECTION 18-1) (*):   

Michele Wood (Assistant Planner) Request amendment to Property Maintenance Code  

(18-1) to include the maximum grass and weed height allowed in the City of St. Marys   

Councilmember Reilly moved to approve the amendment to the Ordinance (Property Code 

Maintenance Section 18-1) to include maximum grass and weed height allowed in the City.  

Councilmember Colville seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the 

motion. 
 

D. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY, US CITIZENSHIP & IMMIGRATION SERVICES 

(SAVE) (*):  To renew a federal mandated agreement with DHS-USCIS for the verification 

of illegal aliens 

Councilmember Reilly made a motion to authorize Mayor John F. Morrissey to sign the 

federal agreement with the Department of Homeland Security, U.S. Citizenship & 

Immigration Services for the verification of illegal aliens.  Councilmember Colville seconded 

the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

E. 3RD QUARTER TOWN HALL MEETING:  To discuss 3
rd

 Quarter Town Hall meeting in July 

which is scheduled for Thursday, July 2, 2015 

Councilmember Nutter made a motion for discussion regarding rescheduling the 3
rd

 Quarter 

Town Hall meeting.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Councilmember Nutter 

moved for discussion and stated due to July 3, 2015 being recognized as a day off and people 

traveling earlier for the three day holiday, he believes attendance will be low.  

Councilmember Nutter amended his motion to reschedule the July 2, 2015 3
rd

 Quarter Town 

Hall meeting to Thursday, July 9, 2015 at 6:00 p.m.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the 

motion. 
 



MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 6 

F. CAMDEN COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE NOMINEES  FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS:   

To vote for 2015-2018 Camden County Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors 

Councilmember Gant made a motion to approve the nominees as presented from the Camden 

County Chamber of Commerce.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was 

unanimous in favor of the motion.  
 

G. APPEAL HEARINGS DATE REQUEST:   (Added) John J. Holman (City Manager)  

The City Manager stated there were two Appeal Hearings that needed to be scheduled due to 

their Variance denial from the Planning Commission.  Mr. Holman requested Wednesday, 

June 10, 2015 (5:00 p.m.) in Council Chambers.  City Council called a Special Called City 

Council Meeting for Wednesday, June 10, 2015 (5:00 p.m.) in Council Chambers at City 

Hall.      
                  
REPORT OF AUTHORITIES, BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES: 
  
A. FINANCE REPORT:  Jennifer Brown (Finance Director) 

The Finance Director presented the tenth month financial report on revenues and 

expenditures for the General, Tourism, SPLOST, Water & Sewer, Solid Waste, and Aquatic 

Center Funds for FY 2015.  Mayor Morrissey asked the Finance Director for respective 

funding from SPLOST and LOST.  The Finance Director stated there was no way to 

measure/predict an outcome for the funds.  Mayor Morrissey stated the FY 2016 Budget will 

be presented to City Council for adoption on June 15, 2015.  Mayor Morrissey mentioned 

digest numbers but stated the FY 2016 Budget reflected a 4% decrease.  A copy of the report 

is attached as part of the official minutes. 
 

B. CITY CALENDAR: City Clerk 

The City Clerk announced the upcoming events, activities and meetings up to June 15, 2015.   
 

REPORT OF MAYOR: 

Mayor Morrissey thanked Angela Wigger and City personnel for their assistance with the events 

and stated the ordinance that was designed for alcohol is working.   
 

GRANTING AUDIENCE TO THE PUBLIC:  There were no comments. 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilmember Williams thanked event organizers and City personnel for their work on both 

successful events (Hello Summer and Fishing Classic) and stated she only had a chance to attend 

the Fishing Classic.  Councilmember Colville stated both events were well attended.    

Councilmember Colville invited everyone to attend Starry Nights on Saturday, June 13
th

 (6:00 

p.m.-8:00 p.m.) at Howard Gilman Memorial Park and listen to Ken Sizemore.  Councilmember 

Reilly announced that Camden Cycling Club was ranked #1 in Georgia with 26,957 point or 

17,500 miles which will attract other cyclist to visit St. Marys.  Councilmember Gant stated he 

attend the Georgia I-95 Southbound Welcome Center groundbreaking with Mayor Morrissey.  

Councilmember Gant stated it was a wonderful event and they were able to speak with Georgia 

State Officials regarding Exit 1 Welcome Center.  Councilmember Powierski encouraged 

citizens to submit board applications for the Main Street/Downtown Steering Committee.       
 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The City Manager spoke about the following:  Hiring of new Police Officers, Police 

Retention/Salary Increases, Police Candidate, Body Worn Cameras/Grants (including 50% 

match grant), FY 2016 Budget Hearings (next one June 15, 2015 at 5:30 p.m.) and Tax Lien 

Sales moved to August with final notices being sent.  Councilmember Nutter asked how many 

homes would be included in the first Tax Lien Sale.  Mr. Holman stated approximately 300 



MINUTES 

Budget Public Hearing & City Council Mtg. 
June 1, 2015 

Page 7 

homes would be on the list.  The Finance Director stated some of the properties were land only.  

Councilmember Reilly asked if property owners still have the opportunity to pay the taxes due.  

Mrs. Brown yes they are able to pay the back taxes and be removed from the list.  Mr. Holman 

stated once the property has been sold at the Tax Lien Sale, the owner could redeem in the first 

year with a 20% penalty, but in the second year there is a 30% penalty and it is up to the holder 

of the lien if they wish to allow the owner to keep the property.     
 

Mr. Holman spoke about the following:  Sign Ordinance and Historic Preservation Commission 

meeting, Gaines Davis Project (anticipated completion date of October 2015 and installation of 

isolation valves), Gaines Davis interruption in water service for residents on Wednesday & 

Thursday, Wright & Marshview Lane Project, Fire Chief Horton collaborating with other Fire 

Chiefs on 911 Center, City Master Plan & Visioning Grant, Gateway Center walkway, Social 

Media site presentation at work session on August 17, 2015 (5:00 p.m.).  Mr. Holman stated the 

following projects will need monetary funds moved from FY 2015 Budget to FY 2016 Budget 

(Fountain Lights, Historic Trails and Trolley Building). Mr. Holman announced the hiring of Mr. 

Jeffery Adams as the new Community Development Director.  Mr. Holman stated over 22 

applications were received nationwide and thanked the Human Resources Director (Donna 

Folsom) for her assistance.   
 

The Mayor and Council requested the City Manager present additional information and data 

regarding the City Tax Lien Sale process.  Councilmember Powierski asked if homes were 

occupied.  The City Manager stated the City did not have that information. Councilmember Gant 

stated the Council should be familiar with the Tax Lien process.  Councilmember Williams 

suggested accessing water/sewer accounts for activity to ascertain if someone lives on the 

property.  Councilmember Nutter requested a list of properties for the July 6, 2015 City Council 

meeting.  Mr. Holman stated it was the City’s first time participating in Tax Lien sales which is 

why the numbers are higher than normal.    

Elijah Smith, 209 Timucuan Court:  Mr. Smith stated he represented Boy Scout Troop 

217 and was working on his Citizenship in Community Badge.  The Mayor, Council and 

residents gave Mr. Smith a warm welcome.    
  
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  There was no Executive Session. 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  

Councilmember Nutter made a motion for adjournment.  Councilmember Williams seconded the 

motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion.  Mayor Morrissey declared the meeting 

adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Deborah Walker-Reed, City Clerk 

 

 
















































































































































































































































































	Agenda 
	Draft Minutes 6.1.2015
	Presentations 
	Board Appointment St. Marys Senior Authority 
	Board Appointments Orange Hall Foundation 
	Board Appointments-Business  Main Street Steering Committee
	Board Appointments-Residents Main Street Sterring Committee
	Old Business 
	A. Main Street Downtown Master Plan Moratorium Discussion
	B Ordinance Zoning Section 110-8
	New Business 
	A. FY 2016 Budget Approval 
	B. Resolution Supporting Senate Bill 36 
	C City Property Request Purchase Sale 
	D. Trolley Building Work Session Date Request
	E. Agreement-MOU GA Forestry Rural Fire Defense  
	F. Special Use Permit Request Billy Walker
	G. Reverse Subdivision Frank DAnna
	H. McGarveys Wee Pub Laua Celebration 
	Untitled
	I. InterLocal Contract-Purchasing Contract HGACBuy
	J. Georgia Department of Labor Career Center Lease Agreement
	K. Budget Ordinance Community Development Director 
	L. MOU 2015 Body Word Camera Grant Police Department 
	6.15.2015 Packet B



